
 

 

 

September 5, 2017 

 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular session on Tuesday, 

September 5, 2017 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  

Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Riddick, Sexton and Walker were present.  Also present were 

County Manager/Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer 

Missy Dixon.   

 

 Chair Walker called the meeting to order.  Mr. Lloyd Jones gave the invocation; 

Commissioner Phelps led the pledge of allegiance.  

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the Consent 

Agenda: 
a) Approval of Minutes 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 

c) Urgent Repair Program 2017 (URP17) Assistance Policy and 

Procurement and Disbursement Policy 

 

Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC FORUM:  Ms. Ann Keyes, 205 East Main Street, Plymouth, gave greetings 

from Hurricane Irma who has maximum sustained winds of 185 mph, moving at 15 miles per 

hour and is a CAT 5. Ms. Keyes went on to say that buildings can be totally destroyed and power 

outages will last for weeks, maybe even months.  If the Emergency Management Director calls 

for an evacuation, please listen to her and EVACUATE. Make sure to have your emergency 

preparedness kits ready.  Another tropical storm named Jose is out there also.  The number to the 

EOC is 793-4114.  Chair Walker asked that Ms. Keyes do a radio spot on this. 

 

INTRODUCTION OF MS. ANGELA (ANGIE) ADAMS, COUNTY MANAGER’S 

OFFICE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: Mr. Potter introduced Angela (Angie) Adams as 

the new County Manager’s Office Administrative Assistant.  Mr. Potter stated that Ms. Adams 

comes to us with over 20 years of administrative experience.  She most recently worked at Pitt 

DSS after working at Martin County Action, Inc. for many years until their closing. 

 

EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: Chair Walker said that the current Employee of 

the Quarter was hired in 1991 and is currently the DSS Adult Services Supervisor.  Chair 

Walker also said he personally knows this recipient and said ‘what you see is what you get’.  

Chair Walker presented Ms. Andrea Alexander with the Employee of the Quarter 

Certificate of Appreciation and said she will also be receiving a check for $50.00.  Ms. 

Adams’ will take her picture and have it posted in the foyer of the County’s Administrative 

Building.  Ms. Alexander spoke and said this was a total surprise and thanked everyone.  

 

UPDATE ON ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT COUNCIL, INC.:  Dr. Landon Mason, 

Executive Director of the Economic Improvement Council (EIC), offered greetings from the EIC 



 

Board members and said his purpose tonight was three-fold:  he wanted to introduce himself, 

share what the EIC programs are doing for Washington County residents and ask for a donation. 

 

Dr. Mason said that the EIC provides services to aid economically disadvantaged 

residents within Chowan, Camden, Currituck, Gates, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Washington, 

Dare, Hyde, and Tyrell counties. Dr. Mason said that 19% of the population in Washington 

County lives in poverty.  Programs offered in Washington County include a Head Start program 

that offers pre-school education to families with young children, the Section 8 Housing Voucher 

program that provides housing subsidies to low-income renters, the Weatherization Program, that 

offers winterization and maintenance services for better energy efficiency, and the Community 

Services Block Grant (CSBG) program. Dr. Mason provided assistance statistics for Washington 

County that included 202 people (at $370/person) were served by the Section 8 Voucher 

Program, 34 families (at $8,024/family) were served in Head Start, aided 20 individuals through 

the CSBG for a total of $3,045/per customer, and weatherized homes in Washington County for 

$4,535.  

 

Dr. Mason asked the Commissioners to consider a donation of $20,000 unrestricted funds 

to EIC, Inc.  

  

Commissioner Johnson asked how much of EIC, Inc. is funded through Federal, State or 

local government. Dr. Mason explained that it all starts at the Federal level--some funds are 

funneled through the state and then allocated to the agency. Dr. Mason said his number is 482-

4458 x137. 

 

COLLETON SOFTWARE—QUARTERLY UPDATE, MR. DAVE PICKREN: Mr. 

Dave Pickren of Colleton Software spoke to the Board and gave the latest statistics on EMS 

Billing in the report below. 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 
 

Mr. Pickren noted that call volume has increased in Washington County for the first time 

since 2010 and the majority has come from the non-emergent side. It has increased by 

approximately 28%.  

 

Chair Walker thanked Mr. Pickren for attending the meeting and presenting this 

information to the Commissioners. 

 

 WASHINGTON COUNTY RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT DOCUMENTS, MS. ZINA 

RHODES, DSS:   

 

a) FY 2017-2018 Rural Operating Assistance Program Grant (This document is incorporated by 

reference and hereby made a part of these minutes.)   

 

Ms. Rhodes stated the allocation of funds is as follows: 

 

The NCDOT Public Transportation Division has allocated the following ROAP funds to Washington 

County:  

  

 EDTAP $52,543 

 EMPL $  5,713 

 RGP $49,700 



 

           $107,956 

 

The Washington County Department of Social Service and the Transportation Advisory Board 

recommends to the Board that the allocation of EDTAP funds be sub-allocated as follows: 

 

 Washington County Senior Center  $6,000 

 Roanoke Development Center   $6,000 

 Washington County Riverlight Transit           $40,543 

                                                                           $52,543 

 

  Commissioner Johnson asked if there is a match for the funds.  Ms. Rhodes stated 

yes, and that the tickets sold help to make the match dollars.  Mr. Charles Sharpe asked what 

the $15 ticket is for.  Ms. Rhodes said the $15 ticket is for a round trip to Greenville to 

handle whatever business you have in Greenville.  Currently Riverlight Transit goes to 

Greenville on Tuesdays. Ms. Rhodes also stated that Riverlight Transit will be starting a 

route to the Beaufort County Community College’s main campus in Washington this year. 

 

  Commissioner Johnson made a motion to authorize Washington County DSS 

to submit an application for the FY2017-2018 Rural Operating Assistance Program 

Grant and the distribution of the funds to programs and agencies in the County as 

presented.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 

b) Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Policy and Procedures 

 

Ms. Rhodes stated that this policy is written to establish operating and service guidelines and 

procedures for the implementation of the requirements of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 

(ADA), the U.S. Department of Transportation regulations for implementing ADA (49 CFR Parts 27, 

37 and 38), and applicable state laws and regulations. All services operated by the Riverlight Transit 

are operated on a non-fixed route basis and the system complies with ADA requirements with respect 

to such services. 

 

Commissioner Johnson asked if the drivers are being trained to follow these policies.  Ms. 

Rhodes replied yes, the State requires they have training. Mr. Potter said he can verify that 

training is being done since he has signed the checks for the training.  Mr. Potter said he has 

also has reviewed all these documents and has no problem with them. 

 

c) Charter Policy 

 

Ms. Rhodes stated that this policy is written to establish guidelines for the transit system to  

comply with 49 CFR Part 604, as amended January 14, 2008.  These regulations prohibit 

recipients and sub-recipients of federal transit assistance from providing charter service 

using federally funded equipment or facilities except as listed in the regulation. 

 

 

d) School Transportation Service Policy 

 

Ms. Rhodes stated that Riverlight Transit will adhere to all federal and state requirements 

related to exclusive public school transportation service and will at no time provide such 

service.  This does not supply school bus services. 



 

  

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the DSS Riverlight Transit 

Documents:  Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Policy and Procedures, 

Charter Policy and School Transportation Service Policy.  Commissioner Phelps 

seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
  

e) Public Transportation Grant Agreement between Washington County and NCDOT for Formula 

Grants for Rural Areas Program  (5311 Grant) 

 

Ms. Rhodes told the Board that the grant is approximately $92,000 and requires a match of $13,000.  

Chair Walker asked if DSS has trouble getting drivers.  Ms. Rhodes said DSS didn’t have a lot of 

applicants when there was a vacancy, but the two vacancies they have had, the applicants came from 

the school system.  The Riverlight Bus Driver position is the lowest paid salary in the County. 

 

Mr. Lloyd Jones asked if there would be a route going to the branch of University of Mt. Olive in 

Washington.  Mr. Jones suggested DSS check and see if there is a need for such transportation. 

 

 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Public Transportation Grant 

Agreement between Washington County and NCDOT for Formula Grants for Rural Areas 

Program (5311 Grant).  Commissioner Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

WATER ASSET INVENTORY ASSESSMENT GRANT & RESOLUTION:  Mr. Potter 

stated that this grant was brought to the County’s attention by Rivers & Associates.  The grant is 

for $150,000 with a 10% match with “in kind services”, and the County would be able to pay for 

an exhaustive study to take inventory of what the County water system has and what shape it is 

in and to know what assets we need. Mr. Potter went on to say that part of the resolution says to 

revisit the plan at a later date also so the information gathered doesn’t just ‘sit on the shelf’.  Mr. 

Greg Churchill, Rivers & Associates, was at tonight’s meeting and spoke to the Board.  Mr. 

Churchill said Rivers & Associates are always on the lookout for opportunities for their clients.  

Mr. Churchill went on to say the County’s economic status is what makes the match low.  He 

also mentioned that someone from GIS might want to work on the team regarding mapping the 

assets. This inventory would also show the real needs and what the County should prioritize. Mr. 

Churchill said he hopes it will be a ‘living document’.  The application is due September 29 and 

the first step is to approve a resolution. 

 

Mr. Potter asked Mr. Churchill if this study will help the County in getting grants of this 

type in the future.  Mr. Churchill said yes, it could open the door to other funding opportunities. 

Mr. Churchill told the Board that Rivers & Associates is offering to do this at no charge and if 

the funds are granted, he hopes the Board will allow Rivers & Associates the opportunity to 

work on the project.  

 

Mr. Tawes said that the Board has asked him in the past what the County needs to be 

more efficient and having this study done is the first step in helping the County move forward in 

identifying those needs. 

 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion approve the Water Asset Inventory Grant & 

Resolution.  Commissioner Riddick seconded motion, carried unanimously.  
 



 

 NCDOT UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENTS:  Mr. Potter spoke to the Board about two 

NCDOT relocation agreements for the two roads listed below and gave some background information:  

a) Cross Road 

b) Mackeys Road 

 

 
 

 Mr. Potter stated that the two sets of agreements are in connection with bridge renovations. 

(These documents are incorporated by reference and hereby made a part of these minutes.)  The 

County can bill them every 30 days. The County will be reimbursed by NCDOT for replacement of 

what we currently have, not for the betterment of the utilities.  Mr. Potter said the County would be 

responsible for those funds, and in talking with Mr. Tawes, there is no betterment (i.e. upgrading to 

larger pipes) that needs to be done at this time. 

 

 Commissioner Sexton asked are the lines on Mackeys Road water 6” lines.  Mr. Tawes replied 

that they were 6” lines.  Commissioner Sexton asked Mr. Tawes if the County should consider 

going to larger pipes since the County has been talking about pushing more water to Pea Ridge.  

Mr. Tawes said that is an excellent insight, but the bottleneck is not on Hwy 32.  

 

 The resolution that needs approval is below. 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the NCDOT Utility Relocation 

Agreements for Cross Road and Mackeys Road and the associated Resolution and 

authorize the County Manager/County Attorney on behalf of Washington County, to 

execute and deliver such agreements as may be modified for the County’s benefit, as well as 

any similar or related agreements or documents that may be required to facilitate the 

administration and completion of both utility relocation projects in accordance with the 

applicable laws, and to obtain full reimbursement for the costs thereof from the 

Department of Transportation.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

BID EXEMPTION RESOLUTION FOR EMS HEART MONITORS:   Mr. Potter 

spoke to the Board on the abovementioned topic. The County will need to have installment 

financing for this, however these heart monitors are needed immediately.  There are only a 

handful of vendors that can provide these heart monitors.  There are exemptions in the statutes 

that allows for bid exemption. This resolution would waive any conflicts with local policies also. 

Commissioner Johnson asked what the lifespan of a monitor is.  Mr. Coccaro said 5-7 years. Mr. 

Coccaro said some of Washington County’s have been in service for 13 years, but the average is 

7 years.  

 

Commissioner Sexton asked if the County will be getting a credit of $30,000 for our 

current monitors. Mr. Coccaro said yes, we should be getting a credit. Commissioner Sexton 

asked is the cost of $187,000 for all the monitors.  Mr. Coccaro said yes, this is for 6 monitors.  

Mr. Coccaro said he wants a high quality monitor and the monitors from other companies are 

about the same, but the quote presented to the Commissioners this evening was the lowest. 



 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the bid exemption resolution (as 

presented here) for EMS Heart Monitors.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion 

carried unanimously. 



 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 

amendments and her report that was in the Commissioners’ package.  She said Finance will be 

closing in the positive.  Ms. Dixon said she received a call from the Department of Revenue that 

said the County’s sales tax revenues do remain at an increase.  Ms. Dixon told the 

Commissioners that the County has received the money from NCHFA for the next housing grant 

and also the County’s last FEMA payment has come in as of late last week.  

 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 

 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve BA#2017-047, BT#2018-009, 

BT#2018-010 and BA#2018-011.  Commissioner Johnson seconded, motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 



 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIRPERSON, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY 

MANAGER, ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER/ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 

Commissioner Johnson said that she and Commissioners Phelps, Riddick and Walker 

traveled to Durham for the annual NCACC Conference. Commissioner Johnson also commended 

Commissioner Riddick who helped a person who passed out during the Conference.  

Commissioner Johnson stated that she led a session on 911. She said there were some great 

speakers at the Conference. Commissioner Johnson said she learned that 911 is the backbone of 

Emergency Management.  

 

Commissioner Johnson mentioned that she also traveled to OH for the annual NACo 

Conference.  She attended a discussion about rural water and sewer.  She said the Feds are trying 

to remove USDA funding.  NACo is trying to keep that from happening. 

 

Commissioner Riddick said the annual NCACC Conference was exciting and 

informative.  Other Commissioners from other counties were willing to help her and she enjoyed 

discussions with them to find out what issues they have in their counties. 

 

Commissioner Riddick said that she met the new MTW Director, Wes Gray, at the MTW 

Health Department Board Meeting.  He is originally from Plymouth and very excited to start his 

new job. 

 

Commissioner Phelps said he had a question for Ms. Keyes (who was in the audience).  

Commissioner Phelps said he has received a lot of calls from constituents regarding evacuation 

for the storm.  Commissioner Phelps asked how much notice is given for evacuation.  Ms. Keyes 

said the Control Group makes that decision and information is disseminated at that time.  Mr. 

Charles Sharpe asked if the County has evacuation points to go to.  Ms. Keyes said yes, but the 

County may be asked to be a Host County depending on where the storm goes.  Ms. Keyes said 

Washington County will get a hurricane watch first, then comes the hurricane warning.  She will 

have a pre-hurricane briefing of at least 5 days in advance.  Ms. Zina Rhodes asked would Ms. 

Keyes have need of Riverlight Transit.  Ms. Keyes said yes and she would need their drivers 

also.  Ms. Keyes said she may be out of the County doing some planning, depending on which 

direction the storm travels. 

 

Commissioner Sexton asked about the mowing of Mall Creek. Mr. Potter said it’s a 

contractual hold up. The Soil & Water Tech will be getting an aerial photo to see where the area 

is located. 

 

Chair Walker said he also attended the annual NCACC Conference. He attended a 

session on consolidation on schools and found out there are a lot of things to consider when 

thinking of school consolidation.  Chair Walker said he also attended the EM and 911 sessions. 

They were very informative, thorough and concise. 

 

Ms. Bennett mentioned the following items: 

 

 The Peanut Festival is Saturday, September 9, 2017.  The parade starts at 11:00 

AM.  Ms. Bennett asked the Commissioners’ if any of them plan to ride in the 

parade.  She needs to let the Town of Roper know tomorrow, and someone will 

need to sign the waiver of liability. 



 

 

 

Mr. Potter reported on the following items: 

 

 The MTW counties are going to be holding an Opioid Epidemic meeting on 

October 26 at the Bob Martin Agriculture Center in Williamston.  (The meeting 

was originally scheduled for October 19 but was in conflict with the Southern 

Albemarle Association meeting). 

 

 There had been a substantial leak in the jail. The female inmates were moved to 

Beaufort County Jail. Mr. Potter noted there will be some budgetary impact. 

 

 The Town of Roper went on the County water supply today. 

 

 He is targeting the end of this month to have the renovations completed to have 

our 911 backup center at BCCC.  He also noted that the County will not be using 

a whole classroom. 

 

 He is still trying to target the drainage service district for this fall. 

 

 The copier contracts are coming up.  The County will be going out for bids on a 

new contract and hopefully save the County money. 

 

 Due to the stormy weather, Ms. Keyes has been taking some of the Thursday 

radio spots lately. 

 

Mr. Sharpe asked about who is responsible for cutting the grass on the roads.  Ms. Keyes 

said that it’s DOT’s responsibility and they contract it out.  Mr. Potter said he will send an e-mail 

to the DOT district engineer to let them know this subject came up in the meeting tonight.  

 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 

143.318.11(a)(6) personnel.  Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

  

 Back in Open Session, Commissioner Phelps made the motion that the County 

Manager/County Attorney proceed with negotiating and preparing a written repayment 

agreement with the Creswell Fire Department regarding its firetruck based on the Fire 

Commission’s recommendation and information communicated by Chief Ambrose.  

Commissioner Riddick seconded.  Chair Walker, Commissioner Phelps and Commissioner 

Riddick voted aye.  Commissioner Johnson and Commissioner Sexton voted nay. Motion 

passed. 

 

 Chair Walker made the motion that Roper Fire Department will be reimbursed for 

½ of the amount they returned to Washington County for the early payoff on their 

firetruck.  Commissioner Phelps seconded. Chair Walker, Commissioner Phelps, 

Commissioner Riddick and Commissioner Johnson voted aye.  Commissioner Sexton voted 

nay. Motion passed. 

 

 

 



 

 

At 9:05 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Riddick made a motion 

to adjourn.  Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

______________________________  _____________________________ 

Julius Walker, Jr.       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCCCC 

         Chair        Clerk to the Board    

 


